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MINUTES OF THE FIFTY THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE
POLISH SOCIAL AND CULTURAL ASSOCIATION LIMITED
held on Saturday the nineteenth day of May 2018
at the Polish Social and Cultural Centre, 238-246 King Street, London W6 0RF
The Chair of the Association, Mr Wojciech Tobiasiewicz, opened the meeting at 11.25 am and
welcomed those present. A minute’s silence was observed for those POSK members who had
passed away since the last AGM: Wanda Gańczakowska, Kazimierz Szydło, Wanda Lesisz,
Krystyna Szwagrzak, Janina Jasińska, Danuta Bogdanowicz, Stefan Trylski, Alicja Ejsmond,
Michał Giedroyć, Marek Wolski, Grzegorz Stachurski, Andrzej Jeziorski, Janusz Cywiński,
Adam Ostrowski, Tomasz Piesakowski i Ludwik Maik. Father Marek Reczek said a prayer
before the business of the meeting.
There was only one person proposed to chair the meeting, Mr Wiktor Moszczyński. Mr
Moszczyński thanked those present for his election. He hoped that the meeting could be
concluded in a shorter space of time than previous years to allow members to enjoy the sunny
day, watch the remainder of the Royal Wedding or be in time for the start of FA Cup Final at
Wembley later on. He stated that for fairness and to minimise delays, members would be
allowed a maximum of five minutes to make a comment or ask questions. Mr Moszczyński
requested that as in previous years, the outgoing Chair of the Association Mr Wojciech
Tobiasiewicz join the table. Finally, he asked the Company Secretary, Mr Andrzej Zakrzewski
to also join. The majority of members were in favour of Mr Zakrzewski joining with ten against
and one abstention.
Two assessors were required for the meeting and the following were proposed: Mrs Alina
Czwałga-Matuszewska and Mrs Jagoda Kaczorowska. Both agreed. Ms E Howard was
proposed to minute the meeting. These proposals were accepted. The following agenda was
proposed:
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
1

Confirmation of the Minutes of the Fifty Second Annual General Meeting
Matters Arising
To receive the Reports of the Executive Committee and Council of Management
To consider and discuss the above
To receive the Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 December 2017
with the Auditors report thereon
To receive the Internal Review Committee Report and Approve the Appropriateness
of Financial Activities in achieving the Association’s objectives for the year
Election of Members of the Council of Management
Election of the Internal Review Committee
Appointment of the Auditors
Election of the Chair of the Association for the forthcoming year
Any Other Business
Minutes of the Fifty Second Annual General Meeting

Members were reminded that any amendments should have been submitted to the POSK
Office in writing prior to the meeting. The following amendments had been submitted.
Under item 8.2 (pg 20 - Election of new members of the Internal Review Committee), there
were two amendments:
Mrs H Czwałga-Matuszewska to be corrected to Mrs A Czwałga-Matuszewska.
Mr Karol Wiśniewski to be added to the list of Internal Review Committee (IRC) members.

5

Following the above amendments, the Minutes of the Fifty Second Annual General Meeting
were accepted with four against and four abstentions.
2

Matters Arising

None were raised.
3

Report of the Executive Committee

3.1

Mr Tobiasiewicz gave a PowerPoint presentation. He stated that in 2016 the
Association had become the centre of attention in both the Polish and English
community and was viewed as an opinion forming organisation. It had taken part in
various initiatives and events including a Home Office Working Group, ‘Community
Connect’, ‘Better than That’, the Belvedere Forum and Polish Heritage Day.

3.2

The motto for the year 2017 and of the Wiadomości POSK was ‘On Calm Waters’ (Na
Spokojnych Wodach).
Yet in late January 2018 POSK’s basement had been
threatened with flooding due to a burst water main in King Street. Fortunately, the risk
did not become a reality.

3.3

Mr Tobiasiewicz gave a summary and highlights of the past year and apologised if he
had omitted anything, saying that his presentation was supplementary to the
exhaustive reviews of 2017 in Wiadomości. On 21st January 2018, POSK
commenced celebrating the 100th anniversary of Poland Regaining Independence,
with an exhibition opened by the Ambassador of the Republic of Poland. In 2017 over
40,000 people had visited the building to attend over 160 cultural and social events.

3.4

The Association continued to manage the Polish Library in London which it had taken
on in 1964. This was one of the Association’s greatest treasures and he thanked Dr
Dorosława Platt and her staff for their hard work.

3.5

Some of the events that had taken place over the year included the POSK Opłatek;
Moniuszko’s rarely seen opera Paria, Snow White by Teatr Syrena with many children
and families attending, and Scena Polska.uk production of Fredro’s Zemsta. The
Jazz Café had mounted 75 performances with many well-known artists and groups
playing. The Association of Polish Engineers in G.B (STP) held the ‘Science Day –
Poland’s Contribution’ at POSK, as part of British Science Week in March. This was
very successful with over 500 adults and young people attending science events and
demonstrations in the building. Classical concerts and films had also been put on by
the Confraternity of Polish Artists in G.B as well as others. The Welfare Committee
had continued to support particularly the elderly in the community. He thanked all
volunteers for their hard work and commitment.

3.6

There had also been many notable visitors: the Ambassador of the Republic of
Poland, a good friend of POSK had accepted several invitations in person. Other
significant visitors had included Senator Anna Maria Anders, Deputy Mayor of London
Matthew Ryder, who came to learn more about the culture and activities of the Polish
community and Tomasz Różniak, Treasurer of Wspólnota Polska, who was
impressed with POSK’s ability to fund themselves, compared with communities , who
relied upon Wspólnota funding to construct and maintain their centres. In March
Theresa May came to POSK as one of the locations across the UK to meet and talk
with Polish citizens directly affected by Brexit.

3.7

With regard to finances, expenditure for 2017 had increased to £947,000, compared
to £887,000 for 2016. Income in 2017 was £967,000, compared to £923,000 in 2016.
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3.8

The structural deficit had reduced to £20,000 in 2017 compared to £36,000 in 2016.
He hoped that in the next few years this deficit would be eliminated.
With regard to investments, the three flats at 9 Ravenscourt Avenue which had cost
£225,000 to build now gave an annual income of £53,000. The four flats at 238A and
238B King Street which had cost £507,000 to build now gave an annual income of
£97,000. The four dwellings being built at 3 Ravenscourt Avenue at a cost of
£1,000,000 (POSK’s biggest building project since 1976) would provide an estimated
annual income of £75,000. Building work commenced in late 2017. It was project
managed by Mr Andrzej Rumun. The project had been put out to tender and Drayton
Builders were now undertaking the construction works. Mr Tobiasiewicz stated that to
date, all such construction at POSK had been completed on time and within budget.
The current building work was due to finish in the autumn of 2018.

3.9

Associated works in the last year had included new windows in the Malinowa Hall and
the Łowiczanka Restaurant. The kitchen restaurant was being enlarged by 24 m² to
provide more food preparation and equipment space. New air conditioning and
ventilation units had been installed in the building. Future renovation works will
include renovating the toilets and ageing lifts. By enclosing the leaking terrace area
above the Malinowa Hall, an additional 100 m² atrium space secure from rainwater
would be created at a small on-cost compared with repairing the leaking terrace area.

3.10

In April the internet radio station, Radio Star moved from Peterborough to POSK. As
the centre of Polish culture in the UK, they felt POSK was an appropriate base for
their station. The POSK building is home to many Polish organisations, both old and
new.

3.11

Paintings bequeathed to the Association by Mieczysław Lurczyński many years ago
had recently been catalogued by Mrs Elvira Olbrich. With the agreement of the
Council of Management, 60 were taken to Poland to be auctioned. 8 were sold and
the remainder would be returning to POSK in London.

3.12

Events commemorating the 100th anniversary of Poland Regaining Independence
would continue throughout 2018. He thanked all of those who had been involved in
organising and contributing to these events.

3.13

With the Council of Management’s approval, the property in Cheltenham was sold.
Revenue from the sale would go towards the building work costs at 3 Ravenscourt
Avenue. it is hoped that the property at Frascati 4, Warsaw would be sold later this
year. Apart from three ground floor flats (for which POSK had received financial
compensation from the Warsaw City Council), the remainder of the property was
owned by POSK.

3.14

Finally, he thanked Marcin Zaremba and the Statute Committee for the new draft of
the Memorandum and Articles of Association. The document would be sent out to all
Council of Management Members in the months following this AGM. Two meetings
were planned. The first would be a meeting for Members to discuss the draft
document with the Statute Committee on Saturday 15 September 2018. The second
would be an Extraordinary General Meeting on Saturday 24 November 2018 to
approve the new Memorandum and Articles of Association.

3.15

Mr Tobiasiewicz concluded by thanking the employees of POSK, the Council of
Management and the Executive Committee members for their hard work during the
year and hoped today’s meeting would be successful.

4

Discussion following the Chair’s Report
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4.1

Mr Moszczyński thanked Mr Tobiasiewicz for his report and reminded members that
the questions and discussion were time-limited.

4.2

Mr Zakrzewski thanked Ms Iwona Abramian and all the volunteers who had helped
with mailing of the AGM documents and with registration today. He also reminded
everyone that Mass on Sunday 20th May would be celebrated at St Andrew Boboli’s
Church for Prof Roman Wajda, founder of POSK and all past benefactors and
members.

4.3

Ms Cyparska wanted clarification regarding voting at the meeting, whether Mrs
Grocholewska had been found office space, the total cost of the Paria Opera and
whether Mr J Serafin was still a member of the Association. Mr Zakrzewski replied that
registration was due to close at 13:00 therefore he was unable to confirm how many
members were eligible to vote until then. He confirmed that Mrs Grocholewska still had
the office space but continued to refuse to sign the agreement. Mr Wiśniowski replied
that the total cost of the opera had been £17,000. Income from ticket sales had been
£7,000. The Association had subsidised the production by £10,000. Mr Tobiasiewicz
replied that although Mr Serafin was a member of POSK, he had not been a member
of the Council of Management, Executive Committee nor active volunteer for many
years now. Whether someone had or had not lost a court action did not warrant
retracting membership.

4.4

Mr Węgrzynowski enquired how many millions had been spent on building the new
flats. Ms Cyparska and Mr Łoziński were also concerned about the financial situation.
Mr Wiśniowski replied that the current building work would cost £1,000,000. Once the
four dwellings were completed, the annual income generated would be far greater than
income gained from rental of the Cheltenham and Frascati properties combined.

4.5

Mrs Kruczkowska-Young, who was a candidate for the Council of Management, asked
why some information from her submitted biography had not been included. Mr
Tobiasiewicz apologised, but some of the longer biographies were edited to ensure
consistency in length for all candidates.

4.6

Mrs Kaut-Howson queried why donations and bequests had dropped over the last few
years. Was this a reflection on how members or visitors felt about POSK? Mr
Zakrzewski replied that in the post war years, many Poles who had settled in the UK
and had lost their families during the war, were more likely to have bequeathed their
property to POSK than now. The recent reduction in bequests was more due to people
now leaving property to their children and grandchildren, instead of POSK. Mrs KautHowson also stated that POSK had a theatre, library, restaurant and gallery, yet
someone passing by on the street would not be aware. Would it be possible to put up
information re current productions or exhibitions to encourage people to enter? Mr
Tobiasiewicz replied that informing passers-by of cultural events was a good
suggestion but the front of the building should not have too many banners.

4.7

Mr Zółtaniecki asked what was proposed for the Frascati property. Mr Wiśniowski
replied that the plan was to sell the property for the best possible price and put the
funds towards the current building work at POSK.

4.8

Mr Grudzień suggested it was a conflict of interest for Executive Committee members
to sponsor potential new members to the Association. Secondly, he had not received
an answer to his question at the last AGM regarding POSKlub ownership, nor had it
been minuted correctly. Finally, why did it take a year from the previous AGM to
produce the white booklet? Mr Zakrzewski replied there was no conflict of interest.
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Potential members approached existing members they knew to sponsor them, some of
whom where also on the Executive Committee. With regard to the second point, Mr
Zakrzewski responded that members had been asked to submit in writing any
corrections or amendments to the minutes prior to the AGM. The minutes had already
been approved. Mr Wiśniowski replied to his third query that the white booklet could
not be produced until that external auditors had signed off the accounts, therefore it
could not be produced earlier.
4.9

Mr Iwanoski and Mr Sieciechowicz asked for more information re Radio Star. Concerns
were raised that this internet radio station may further its own interests to the detriment
of POSK. Mr Wiśniowski replied Radio Star was a private company, already
established for three years. It was a commercial rent paying tenant with an agreement
signed with POSK. Mr Zakrzewski added that if the tenant proved to be unsuitable,
then the agreement would not be renewed. Mrs R Chmielewska-Lambourne added that
Scena Polska.uk had its profile raised following interviews with Radio Star. It
encouraged more young people to attend their performances.

4.10

Ms Maj-Dana asked what was the demographic of the 2,300 members. Mr
Tobiasiewicz replied it was not possible to extract this information as the date of birth
was only added to the application form in recent years.

4.11

Mr Grzyb wanted clarification: on pg 61, Other Costs, ‘Frascati 4 repairs and renewals’
£16,378. Mr Zakrzewski replied that the building was bequeathed with rent paying
tenants, who therefore had rights. Commercial rent agreements have been set up with
a new tenant. The property would be sold with vacant possession. Ms R Cyparska
alleged this was a lie and that the garden at Frascati 4 had already been sold. Mr
Zakrzewski confirmed she was mistaken. The garden had not been sold. It made no
financial sense to sell the garden given there was potential for a developer to build an
underground garage.

4.12

Confirmation was given at this point that Registration had closed at 13:00 and 162
members had registered.

4.13

Mr Becla despite not submitting a correction to the 2017 Minutes earlier clarified that
the private impresario business was run solely by Mrs Becla. Mr Becla stated that the
Council of Management had rejected his proposal for a 50% reduction on venue hire
costs for childrens’ events, yet POSK had subsidised the opera by £10,000, which
concerned him. Had there been a business plan drawn up? Mrs Młudzińska responded
that as stated at the previous AGM, if Mrs Becla put forward a request for reduced
venue hire costs, each request would be considered by the Executive Committee. Mrs
Bell confirmed that many local schools used the theatre - all paid full price for venue
hire. The Council of Management had unanimously agreed to reject a blanket rule of
reduced venue hire costs for children’s events, but she reiterated that the Executive
Committee would consider each formal request. Mr Becla requested that the AGM
vote if members agreed to £10,000 opera subsidy. Mr Moszczyński replied that such
a proposal should have been formally put in writing well before the meeting. Mr
Wiśniowski added that the Association’s budget, which indicated a loss for the opera,
had been presented to the Council of Management which had accepted the budget.

4.14

Mr Sieciechowicz was concerned that a disreputable member could not be thrown out.
Mr Zakrzewski replied that sadly there was no provision in the current Memorandum
and Articles of Association to do so. But under the new Memorandum and Articles of
Association a disreputable member could have their membership cancelled. Mr
Sieciechowicz suggested that rather than make a loss on the opera, the subsidy could
have been used to assist groups such as Scena Polska.uk to put on additional
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performances. Mrs Młudzińska replied that the opera production was a prestige event
that opened POSK to an audience outside the Polish community. The opera had
received positive reviews in established UK entertainment publications. Mr Zakrzewski
added that it was important that the Polish community be seen as cultured, especially
when currently there were many aggressive and violent marches and protests in
Poland being reported in the UK media.
4.15

Mr Sieciechowicz and Dr Laskiewicz wanted further information regarding Theresa
May’s visit. Mrs Młudzińska stated POSK was given two days’ notice that Theresa May
would come to POSK. The location was one of several chosen across the country. The
Prime Minister met ten individuals from the new Polonia directly affected by Brexit. Mr
Zakrzewski added that the media interviews given by Mrs Młudzińska after the
referendum had raised POSK’s profile considerably as the centre of the Polish
community, resulting in Downing Street’s request.

4.16

Mr Straus and Mr Łoziński asked about the draft Memorandum and Articles of
Association. When would it be sent out prior to the September meeting? Would there
be enough time to debate the amendments? Would there be new criteria re new
member applications? Mr M Zaremba replied at least two weeks beforehand. It would
be in English as this would be a legal document. There would be amendments to the
membership rules. Mr Straus was disappointed that despite his suggestion at a
previous AGM, nothing had been done re setting up forums to discuss matters outside
of the AGM in greater depth.

4.17

Mrs Grocholewska stated that she had still not signed the tenancy agreement given to
her several years ago and was still awaiting a response to a letter written four years
previously. She was aggrieved and dissatisfied with the size of office space and with
having to share with two other organisations. Mr Zakrzewski replied that when the
parties had met prior to the issue of the tenancy agreement, Mrs Grocholewska had
agreed to sign the documents, which gave her sole access five days per week. She
then reneged on her word. He was happy to bring down the documentation for her to
sign today.

4.18

Mr Węgrzynowski reported that he had seen Polish medals, books and other mementos

dumped near the POSK building and asked for an explanation. He was asked to send in
pictures of the details and this matter could then be investigated Ms Cyparska stated

that in her opinion, POSK was for the Polish community which had the right to venue
hire. POSK should therefore not hire space to other nationalities which had their own
centres.
4.19

Mr Grudzień asked about the excavations along the wall of the Jazz Café specifically
why the fire exit from the Jazz Café was not going ahead, could they affect the stability
of any walls and what were the water pumps to be used for. Mr A Fórmaniak replied
that following a flood three years ago, excavation along the wall of the Jazz Café took
place to look at the cause. The excavation was to foundation level and so the possibility
of creating a fire exit from the Jazz Café was investigated. But the space was too
narrow to comply with current H&S regulations. With regard to the pumps, these were
activated automatically when water accumulation underground occurred; therefore,
there was no threat to the stability of the neighbouring properties.

4.20

Dr Laskiewicz requested more details re the Home Office meetings. Mrs Młudzińska
explained that she was asked to appear at a Home Office Select Committee meeting
on hate crime with Mr Tadeusz Stenzel and Barbara Drozdowicz. Since then she had
attended Faith Matters meetings and is part of a Home Office User Group about the
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proposed new application system for Settled Status for EU citizens post Brexit. He
then asked if the Polish Embassy was involved. She replied POSK’s involvement was
of a practical aspect. The EU Embassies had separate meetings re political matters.
5.0

Acceptance of the Statement of Financial Activities and Auditors Report
5.1
It was proposed by Mr Zakrzewski that the Statement of Financial Activities and
Auditors Report be accepted. This was accepted by the majority with three votes
against and seven abstentions.

6.0

To receive the Internal Review Committee Report and Approve the Appropriateness
of Financial Activities

6.1

Mrs E Malhomme de la Roche, Chair of the Internal Review Committee (IRC) confirmed
the report had been written in English to conform to the Association’s legal
requirements as an English registered limited company and charity. She stated that
the IRC (elected at the 2017 AGM) consisted of Mrs A Czwałga-Matuszewska, Mr J
Kaczmarek, Mrs A Newsome, Mr J Scibor-Kamiński, and Mr K Wiśniewski and that all
members gave their time and effort on a voluntary basis and at no cost to POSK. She
asked that members read the Treasurer’s end of financial year report, which was in the
white booklet. A copy of the IRC’s full report was available at this meeting.

6.2

Her report covered the year from May 2017 AGM to May 2018 AGM. Only activities for
which the POSK Executive Committee and Council of Management were directly
responsible were examined.

6.3

The Auditors Messrs H W Fisher and Co, in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,
had reviewed the Association’s accounts and gave the opinion that the accounts were
true and fair.

6.4

Income. POSK’s main source was the rental of floor space, rooms, halls, office space
and residential accommodation. Donations were still received though reducing.

6.5

Expenditure. The main expenditure was repairs/maintenance, staff salaries and cost
involved with staffing. More professional staff would be needed to supplement the
small number of staff in future. Utility costs were increasing as expected.

6.6

Capital Expenditure. The newly commenced residential accommodation, renovation of
the aging building facilities and replacement of doors to comply with H&S.

6.7

Bequeathed Properties. Progress re Frascati was slow but diligent, with tenants being
bought out to secure vacant possession prior to sale. The Cheltenham property was
sold at profit.

6.8

Governance. All Executive Committee and Council members were volunteers and
contributed much time. But more volunteers were needed.

6.9

The Theatre, Jazz Café and Welfare Section all had committed volunteers. The Polish
Library’s systems needed upgrading to conform to international standards. This would
require financing.

6.10

IRC made the following recommendations:



More transparency/communication re how AGM desiderata were treated/resolved
POSK to develop contingency plans and protocols re succession planning
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More direct target of 30-40- year olds to get involved/visit POSK
More encouragement/opportunities for volunteers. Co-opting volunteers to assist
with specific projects that Executive Committee cannot take on due to lack of time
Implementation of recommendations from previous report re more communication
with members and Memorandum and Articles of Association being displayed in
reception. Council of Management Minutes and extracts from Executive Committee
Minutes to also be displayed in reception
GDPR to be implemented.

6.11

Thanks were conveyed to Mr Tobiasiewicz, the Executive Committee and Council of
Management members for their hard work and commitment.

6.12

The IRC approved the outgoing Executive Committee’s performance and actions for
the good of POSK for the whole period under review and proposed the AGM absolve
the Executive Committee of its responsibilities with thanks. This was accepted
overwhelmingly with one vote against and eight abstentions.

7.0

Election of the Members of the Council

7.1

Dr Platt reminded everyone that 17 Members of the Council of Management were
standing down. 21 candidates had put themselves forward for the forthcoming term of
office. A maximum of 17 candidates could be voted for on the ballot sheet. Each
candidate was asked to stand up and make themselves known.

7.2

162 members had registered for the meeting. 160 ballot sheets were received with none
spoiled. Of the 21 candidates standing the following 17 were chosen to the Council of
Management: Barbara Bakst, Leszek Bojanowski, Renata Chmielewska-Lambourne,
Izabela Dąbek, Maria Dowgiel, Teresa Greliak, Maria Kruczkowska-Young, Janusz
Marszewski, Joanna Młudzińska, Włodzimierz Mier-Jędrzejowicz, Wiktor Moszczyński,
Alexa Newsome-Stachowicz, Ryszard Szydło, Robert Wiśniowski, Mhirosława Wrona,
Andrzej Zakrzewski and Ryszard Zóltaniecki.

8.0

Election of the Internal Review Committee

8.1

Election of a new Internal Review Committee for the forthcoming year commenced.
Mrs Malhomme de la Roche was proposed as Chair and accepted the Chair. There
were no other nominations.

8.2

Election of members of the IRC then took place. The following were proposed by the
new IRC Chair: Alina Czwałga-Matuszewska, Jan Kaczmarek, Karol Wiśniewski,
Alexa Newsome-Stachowicz and Jerzy Scibor-Kamiński. Alexa Newsome-Stachowicz
declined as she had been voted on to the Council of Management. The remainder
were willing to be appointed.

9.0

Appointment of the Auditors

9.1

It was proposed that H W Fisher & Co, Chartered Accountants, be appointed as
Auditors of the Association for the forthcoming year. Voting took place by a show of
hands. The proposal was accepted by an overwhelming majority with no members
against and 3 abstentions.

10.0

Election of the Chair of the Association

10.1

Mr Wiśniowski proposed Mrs Młudzińska as a candidate for the Chair and noted that
she was the outgoing Executive Committee’s preferred candidate. Mrs Malhomme de
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la Roche proposed Mr Tobiasiewicz. Mr Latacha proposed Mrs Greliak. Only the first
two wished to stand. Both candidates were then given two minutes to outline their
plans for the next year.
10.2

Mrs Młudzińska stated that members were aware of her past record. She had both the
time and commitment to devote to the Association. She wanted to continue to increase
financial stability, ensure the building works were completed and the new Memorandum
and Articles of Association were ratified in the coming year. She had represented the
Association and the Polish community over the last few years and wanted to focus on
bringing the new Polonia to POSK, which was a challenge as those committed to
staying in the UK were putting down roots, building careers etc. But there was
progress. Recently applications from the new Polonia had been accepted and events
like the meeting with Paweł Wszołek, midfielder for QPR football club, with Polish
children at POSK were a positive step in engaging children and their parents, who could
be future members. She also had the support of the outgoing Executive Committee.

10.3

Mr Tobiasiewicz stated that he felt that the limitation on the number of years that the
chair could hold office was sensible. He noted that the Chair had done much during her
five years as Chair particularly re finances and to raise POSK’s profile since the
Referendum. He was encouraged that POSK was now a stronger organisation than
when it first established and therefore able to help other organisations and advise on
matters. He agreed with the IRC that planning for the future was important. Financial
stability was paramount. He was keen to take on board the ethos of Horizon 2030 with
the aim of holding consultation meetings with members re POSK’s future. He
concluded that everyone present was here for the good of the organisation and
therefore, he asked that members vote for the good of the Association, not for him.

10.4

Prior to voting, members posed the following questions and comments: Mr Bildziuk
considered one year was not enough time for the outgoing Chair to have made his mark
as it was a time of gaining insight and an understanding of the organisation. A member
asked Mr Tobiasiewicz that if he was re-appointed, what would be his main aim. He
replied it would be to unite any factions or small groups within POSK to work for the
good of the organisation. It was important to choose members from the Council of
Management to work as the Executive Committee. Mr Wiśniowski clarified that he had
proposed Mrs Młudzińska in the best interests of the Association given her past
experience.

10.5

Voting by ballot took place for the Chair. The votes were posted into the ballot boxes,
checked and counted. 154 votes were cast. Two were spoiled. Mrs Młudzińska gained
81 votes and Mr Tobiasiewicz 73 votes. Mrs Młudzińska was declared Chair of the
Association. She thanked those who voted for her and hoped to gain the confidence
of those who did not by her performance over the coming year.

11.0 Any Other Business
11.1

Mr Moszczyński invited members to raise matters regarding the Association’s future.

11.2

Mr Wiśniowski thanked members who had donated one off sums since the introduction
of the single donation scheme a few years ago. To date, £100,000 had been raised.
He thanked Ms E Davis and Ms H Lubaczewska for administering it. Forms were
available at the end of the meeting. He encouraged members to donate.

11.3

Mr Becla appreciated the purpose of subsidising the opera to raise POSK’s profile but
felt the profile would also be raised by reducing the cost of venue hire for children’s
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performances. He hoped Council of Management would review their decision as it
would benefit POSK.
11.4

Dr Laskiewicz recommended that more communications (eg AGM documents,
information for members) be sent out electronically to save on postage and paper.

11.5

Mr Iwanoski recommended that prior to each AGM the candidates standing for the
Council of Management held a meeting with ordinary members. Each candidate could
explain the reason for standing and what they could offer the Council of Management
if elected.

11.5.1 Mr Chudy recommended that POSK’s events etc be posted on the back wall of the
building to provide information and attract those passing on the tube trains to visit.
11.6

Ms Zara Newsome, a young member, had now attended two AGMs. She saw little had
changed with the same matters constantly being brought up. She was still not clear
what POSK was doing to attract her generation. Her grandparents had contributed
financially to POSK being built. It was important their efforts were not for nothing. More
was needed to get her generation actively involved in POSK. Mr Moszczyński asked
her to leave her details and she would be contacted.

11.7

Mrs Grocholewska recommended that summaries of the Executive Committee and
Council of Management meetings be produced for members. These could be displayed
in the reception.

11.8

She also enquired why her organisation had been asked to pay an additional £30 for
the last three years 2016 to 2018. She reiterated her refusal to sign the agreement.
Mr Zakrzewski replied that each organisation had a signed agreement with the
Association which clearly stated arrangements and obligations. Also, the agreement
clarified why the additional £30 payments had been requested.

11.9

Mr Straus thanked members of the outgoing Executive Committee for answers he had
received during the last break. He was willing to volunteer and assist with setting up
meetings for members to meet with Executive Committee and/or Council of
Management members less formally during the year as a forum for raising questions.

11.10 Mrs Newsome-Stachowicz recommended that members meet with eg, the Executive
Committee or Council of Management members’ informally an hour prior to their
meetings for question and answer sessions. This was a recommendation that the IRC
had put forward at the 2017 AGM regarding greater communication with ordinary
members.
11.11 Mr Kilijanczyk recommended a list be posted (either on the POSK website or in a visible
place in reception) of the groups requiring volunteers.
11.12 Mr Marszewski stated that POSK was taking part in the Open House London weekend
running 22nd and 23rd September. This was a scheme where buildings or areas of
buildings not normally accessible to the public were opened. If any members were
interested in volunteering for part of the weekend, please contact the POSK Office
directly.
11.13 Mr Moszczyński concluded the meeting thanking all for attending. Mr Zakrzewski
thanked Mr Moszczyński for the orderly running of the meeting.
11.14 There being no further business, the meeting concluded at 16:45.
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POSK- Szczegółowe Objaśnienia Finansowe
Podobnie jak w poprzednich latach, w tym opracowaniu i na dwóch ostatnich stronach tej
broszurki („Schedules Supporting Financial Statements”), podane są bardziej szczegółowe
objaśnienia cyfr, które znajdują się w Wiadomościach, aby członkowie POSKu mogli lepiej
zrozumieć sytuację finansową POSKu.
Należy podkreślić, że wszystkie te poniższe dane nie stanowią części prawnie wymaganych
tzw. „Statutory Accounts” podpisanych przez auditorów POSKu, ale się z nich wywodzą, oraz
idą poza wymogi prawne i podają szersze wytłumaczenia niektórych pozycji.
Tabela Numer 1 pokazuje wyniki finansowe POSKu tak jak one figurują w „Statutory
Accounts”, czyli w rozliczeniu sprawdzonym i zatwierdzonym przez audytorów i
zarejestrowanym w Companies House i Charity Commission.
Aby można było dostrzec jak sytuacja z roku na rok się zmienia poniżej podane są wyniki za
ostatnie pięć lat:

Tabela Numer 1: Przychody i Rozchody 2014 - 2018 według “Statutory
Accounts”
2018
£tys.

2017
£tys.

2016
£tys.

2015
£tys.

2014
£tys.

974

1,443

1,036

1,189

1,109

Tabele
Numer 3 i 5

Rozchody- Suma (£1,018) tys.
składa się z (£1,007) tys.
zasadniczych rozchodów i (£11)
tys. jednorazowych rozchodów

(1,018)

(993)

(890)

(988)

(980)

Tabele
Numer 4 i 6

(Niedobór) / Nadwyżka przed
rewaloryzacją inwestycji

(44)

450

146

201

129

Tabela
Numer 2

Rewaloryzacja Inwestycji

(250)

(6)

(6)

550

1,683

Notatka
poniżej

(Niedobór) / Nadwyżka za rok

(294)

444

140

751

1,812

Przychody- Suma £974 tys.
składa się z £906 tys. zasadniczych
przychodów i £68 tys.
jednorazowych przychodów

Szczegóły rewaloryzacji inwestycji można znaleźć w notatce 11 w Statutory Accounts.
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Strukturalny Deficyt
Podobnie jak w poprzednich latach, POSK miał w 2018 roku strukturalny deficyt. Strukturalny
deficyt POSKu pokazany jest w Tabeli Numer 2 poniżej, gdzie widać różnicę ujemną £100 tys.
między zasadniczymi przychodami i rozchodami, czyli stałymi i przewidzialnymi.
Jak również wynika z Tabeli Numer 2 poniżej, jednorazowe przychody są o £57 tys. większe
niż jednorazowe rozchody. Ta nadwyżka nie pokrywa strukturalnego deficytu i daje wynik
niedoboru przed rewaloryzacją inwestycji (£44) tys.
POSK w 2018 ma niedobór, gdyż jednorazowe przychody nie są wystarczająco wyższe niż
jednorazowe rozchody, aby pokryć strukturalny deficyt. To pokazuje, jak ważne jest, aby
dążyć do sytuacji, w której różnica pomiędzy zasadniczymi przychodami i rozchodami (czyli
strukturalny deficyt) zostanie znacznie zmniejszona lub nawet wyeliminowana.

Tabela Numer 2 - Strukturalny Deficyt 2014 - 2018
2018
£tys.

2017
£tys.

2016
£tys.

2015
£tys.

2014
£tys.

Zasadnicze Przychody
Zasadnicze Rozchody

906
(1,007)

947
(967)

887
(923)

848
(943)

763
(911)

Strukturalny Deficyt

(101)

(20)

(36)

(95)

(148)

Jednorazowe Przychody
Jednorazowe Rozchody

68
(11)

496
(26)

149
33

341
(45)

346
(69)

Nadwyżka jednorazowych
przychodów nad rozchodami

57

470

182

296

277

(Niedobór) / Nadwyżka przed
rewaloryzacją inwestycji

(44)

450

146

201

129

Zasadnicze przychody i rozchody
W Tabelach Numer 3 i 4 pokazane są zasadnicze przychody i rozchody, które w rozbiciu
dotyczą tylko stałych, przewidywalnych i ujętych w rocznym budżecie POSKu pozycji.
Różnica między tymi przychodami i rozchodami w 2018 roku nie pokrywa całkowicie
strukturalnego deficytu (Tabela Numer 2).
Należy zaznaczyć, że ten niedobór w 2018 roku jest całkowicie pokryty z nadwyżek z
poprzednich lat.
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Tabela Numer 3 - Zasadnicze przychody 2014 - 2018

Wynajem biura i parkingu
Prenumerata od angielskich
bibliotek (tzw. CCL)
Wynajem sal
Przychody z Jazz Café
Przychody z inwestycji i
regularnych darów
Inne przychody
Zasadnicze PrzychodyRazem

2018
£tys.

2017
£tys.

2016
£tys.

2015
£tys.

2014
£tys.

Uwaga

396

391

372

349

375

1

8

11

12

16

18

2

158
68

195
75

165
64

150
75

159
76

3
4

235

245

236

235

111

5

41

30

38

23

24

6

906

947

887

848

763

Zasadnicze przychody – uwagi
1)

Przychody z wynajmu biur i parkingu wzrosły glównie ponieważ POSK wynegocjował
podwyżki od niektórych lokatorów.

2)

Z powodu redukcji budżetowych władz lokalnych, jak w poprzednich czterech latach, w
2018 roku spadły przychody z tzw „Central Circulating Library”.

3)

Przychody z wynajmu sal obniżyły się głównie dlatego, że szkoła dramatyczna LAMDA
wynajęła teatr na dwa miesiące w 2017 roku a niestety w 2018 nie wynajęłą teatru.

4)

Przychody z Jazz Café wykazane powyżej dotyczą tylko sprzedaży biletów i dochodów z
baru. Nie dotyczą jednak wynajmu Jazz Café (wynoszącego £29 tys.) ponieważ dochody z
tego tytułu są wliczone w pozycji „wynajem sal”.

5)

Przyczyną obniżenia o £10 tys w porównaniu z rokiem 2017 to sprzedaż nieruchomości w
Cheltenham z końcem 2017 roku. Przychody z inwestycji i regularnych darów są
wyszczególnione poniżej:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)

6)

£11 tys. regularnych dotacji na POSK i zwrot podatku „Gift Aid”
£4 tys. za członkostwo Biblioteki i £5 tys. dotacji od organizacji dla Biblioteki
£4 tys za elektryczność wygenerowaną przez panele solarne
£7 tys. odsetek z depozytów i dywidendów z akcji, które są własnością POSKu
£32 tys. czynszów z Frascati 4 (mieszkania i biuro)
£64 tys. czynszów z mieszkań na 9 Ravenscourt Avenue
£108 tys. czynszów z 238 A i 238 B King Street

W skład innych przychodów wchodzą różne drobne kwoty – np. przychody ze sprzedaży
biletów na wydarzenia (łącznie z operą Moniuszki „Flis” i opłatkiem POSKu), ze sprzedaży
książek na kiermaszach, z szatni itd.
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Tabela Numer 4 - Zasadnicze Rozchody 2014 - 2018
2018
£tys.

2017
£tys.

2016
£tys.

2015
£tys.

2014
£tys.

Wynagrodzenie pracowników
Utrzymanie budynku
Inne rozchody
Amortyzacja
Koszty Jazz Café

(409)
(327)
(104)
(71)
(52)

(390)
(301)
(85)
(67)
(61)

(410)
(280)
(86)
(59)
(53)

(402)
(291)
(103)
(56)
(50)

(384)
(274)
(98)
(59)
(60)

7
8

Koszty prowadzenia
nieruchomości inwestycyjnych

(44)

(63)

(35)

(41)

(36)

10

(967)

(923)

(943)

(911)

Zasadnicze Rozchody- Razem (1,007)

Uwaga

9

Zasadnicze rozchody – uwagi
7)

Wymogi prawne dotyczące emerytur i wynagrodzeń pracowników spowodowały
dodatkowy wzrost tych kosztów.

8)

Wydatki na utrzymanie budynku POSKu wynoszą £327 tys. Szczegółowa analiza tej sumy
wykazana jest na ostatniej stronie broszurki („Schedules Supporting Financial Statements –
Accommodation Expenses”). Różnica między £327 tys. a cyfrą £313 tys. w tej „Schedule”,
to:
a) z sumy £313 tys należy odjąć jednorazową zapłatę £8 tys. zaległych rachunków za 2017
i oprawienie obrazów Lurczyńskiego (notatka 14)
b) do sumy £313 tys należy dodać jednorazowy przychód - zwrot za elektryczność od
Vodafone £22 tys. (notatka 16)
Główną przyczyną wzrostu kosztów POSKowych jest wzrost w kosztach elektrycznośći i
wydatków remontowych.

9)

Koszty Jazz Café obejmują tylko koszty artystów i zaopatrzenie baru.

10) Koszty prowadzenia nieruchomości to:
a) Koszty £10 tys. dotyczących mieszkań przy 9 Ravenscourt Avenue
b) Koszty £9 tys. dotyczących mieszkań przy 238 B King Street
c) £25 tys. to wszystkie koszty związane z utrzymaniem budynku przy Frascati 4,
rachunki za gas, elektryczność, wodę, podatek miejski, remonty wykonane przez
Wspólnotę Mieszkaniową itp. W roku 2017 zapłacono zaległy podatek miejski
dotyczący Frascati 4 w sumie £ 10,000, dlatego też koszty te są niższe w roku 2018.
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Jednorazowe przychody i rozchody
Pozostałe przychody i rozchody, nie objęte w Tabelach Numer 3 i 4, są jednorazowe i trudne
do przewidzenia i dlatego nie są ujęte w kalkulacji strukturalnego deficytu. Pokazane są w
Tabelach Numer 5 i 6.

Tabela Numer 5 - Jednorazowe przychody 2014 - 2018

Zapisy Testamentowe
Dotacja- Fundacja Przyszłości
POSKu
Nadwyżka ze sprzedaży inwestycji /
nieruchomości
Jednorazowe dary
Przychody na 50-lecie POSKu
Rewaloryzacja zobowiązań w
stosunku do prowizji adwokata
Inne jednorazowe przychody
Inne Przychody- Razem

2018
£tys.

2017
£tys.

2016
£tys.

2015
£tys.

2014
£tys.

Uwaga

8

7

49

246

144

11

60

460

60

60

103

12

29

16

13
25

34
20
45

68

496

24

10

149

341

346

Jednorazowe przychody – uwagi
11) Zapisy Testamentowe wyszczególnione są w Statutory Accounts i w Wiadomościach
POSKu.
12) W 2018 roku POSK otrzymał dotację od Fundacji POSKu w sumie £60 tys. (w 2017 roku
POSK otrzymał £460 tys.).
13) W 2017 roku POSK sprzedał nieruchomość w Cheltenham. Suma zrealizowana z jej
sprzedaży była o £29 tys. większa niż suma na jaką była zaksięgowana.
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Tabela Numer 6 - Jednorazowe rozchody 2014 - 2018
2018
£tys.

2017
£tys.

2016
£tys.

2015
£tys.

Jednorazowe wydatki na remonty
Odpisanie długów
Jednorazowy przychód - zwrot za
elektryczność od Vodafone
Inne jednorazowe wydatki
Jednorazowy zwrot VAT
Wydatki na Konferencje "MAB"
Wydatki na 50 lecie POSKu
Jednorazowe wydatki dot. Frascati
4 i reorganizacji POSKu

(8)
(11)

(16)

(6)
23

(6)

Inne rozchody- Razem

(11)

2014
£tys.

Uwaga
14
15

22

16

(14)

(7)
-

5
44
(24)

17

(26)

(50)
(3)

(9)

(13)

(19)

(26)

33

(45)

(69)

Jednorazowe rozchody– uwagi
14) W 2018 roku £6 tys. dotyczy rachunków z 2017 roku na utrzymanie kotła które zostały
zapłacone dopiero po zamknięciu księgowości na rok 2017 i £2 tys. dotyczy oprawy
obrazów Lurczyńskiego
15) W 2017 roku suma £11 tys. została umorzona niektórym dłużnikom, gdzie nie było
gwarancji odzyskania długu.
16) W 2018 roku POSK otrzymał £22 tys. zaległych kosztów za elektryczność od Vodafone.
17) Suma £14 tys. obejmuje:
a) £9 tys. wydane na subsydiowanie produkcji Opery „Flis” oraz wydarzeń kulturalnych
b) £5 tys. wydane na drukowanie i rozsyłanie proponowanego nowego Statutu POSKu do
członków POSKu

Wyjaśnienie cyfr w następujących latach
W przyszłym roku planujemy zrewidować sposób przedstawiania tych szczegółowych
wyjaśnień aby były jak najbardziej pomocne dla zrozumienia cyfr a zarazem aby przygotowanie
ich było mniej uciążliwe.
Przewidujemy przedstawienie ich w formie notatek podobnych do tych które obecnie są
dołączane do oficjalnych wyników 'Audited Accounts', czyli „Schedules supporting the
Financial Statements”. Zapraszamy członków aby zgłaszali uwagi na ten temat do biura POSK'u
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Fundacja Przyszłości POSKu
Powiernicy:
Jan Kaczmarek (od czerwca 2018 r.)
Adam Ostoja-Ostaszewski
Robert Wiśniowski (Przewodniczący)
Andrzej Zakrzewski
Marcin Zaremba
Fundacja Przyszłości POSKu została założona w 1989 roku jako organizacja niezależna
od POSKu celem wspierania działalności POSKu. Zgodnie ze statutem Fundacji
Przyszłości POSKu jej Powiernicy wybierani są przez Radę POSKu. Fundacja
Przyszłości POSKu składa się z czterech funduszów jak poniżej:





Fundusz kapitałowy
Fundusz generalny
Fundusz ś.p. Tadeusza Murdzeńskiego
Fundusz ś.p. Zdzisława Jagodzińskiego

Tabela przychodów, rozchodów i kapitału Fundacji Przyszłości POSK’u- 2018r.
Fundusz Fundusz
Fundusz
Fundusz
Murdzeń- Jagodziń- Razem
Kapitałowy Generalny
skiego
skiego
£ tys
£ tys
£ tys
£ tys
£ tys
Razem 1 stycznia 2018 r.

2,610

36

238

186

3,070

Przychody (dywidendy i odsetki)

-

98

5

5

108

Dotacje

-

(60)

-

-

(60)

Wydatki Administracyjne

-

(2)

(5)

-

(7)

Nadwyżka przed rewaloryzacją
inwestycji

-

36

-

5

41

(5)

(5)

(153)

233

186

2,958

Rewaloryzacja inwestycji

(143)

Razem 31 grudnia 2018 r.

2,467

72

22

Fundacja Przyszłości POSKu
Uwagi
1.

Fundusz kapitałowy jest nienaruszalnym funduszem, który ma jako
zadanie generować przychody, które przechodzą do funduszu generalnego.
W 2018 roku wartość Funduszu obniżyła się o £143 tys do £2,467 tys.

2.

Fundusz generalny jest to fundusz na który wpływają przychody z
inwestycji i który jest wykorzystywany na wspieranie działalności POSKu.
W 2018 roku przychody z inwestycji wyniosły £98 tys i POSK wsparto
dotacją £60 tys.

3.

Fundusz ś.p. Tadeusza Murdzeńskiego został ustanowiony spadkiem w
celu ufundowania z przychodów nagród za wybitne prace w dziedzinach
literatury, nauki, muzyki lub sztuki pięknej.
W 2018 roku £5 tys zostało wydane na dwa konkursy – konkurs poetycki i
konkurs malarski
31 grudnia 2018 roku Fundusz ś.p. Tadeusza Murdzeńskiego przedstawia
się następująco:




4.

Nienaruszalny kapitał £145 tys.
Odsetki z których mogą być ufundowane nagrody £88 tys.
Razem £233 tys.

Fundusz ś.p. Zdzisława Jagodzińskiego został ustanowiony spadkiem w
celu wspierania z przychodów specjalnych potrzeb Biblioteki Polskiej.
31 grudnia 2018 roku Fundusz ś.p. Zdzisława Jagodzińskiego przedstawia
się nastepująco:




Nienaruszalny kapitał £144 tys.
Do dyspozycji na specjalne potrzeby Biblioteki £42 tys.
Razem £186 tys.
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POLISH SOCIAL AND CULTURAL ASSOCIATION
Trustees’ Annual Report (Including Directors’ Report)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

The Trustees submit their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 for the Polish Social and Cultural Association (“POSK” or the “Charitable Company” or the
“Charity”). These financial statements are also prepared to meet the requirements for a directors’
report and accounts for Companies Act purposes.
The financial statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the Companies Act 2006, the
Memorandum and Articles of Association, and Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1
January 2015).
Reference and administrative details
POSK is a company limited by guarantee (number 816310) and a registered charity (number
236745), governed by its memorandum and articles of association incorporated 19 August 1964 and
amended by special resolutions on 20 July 1965, 5 July 1966, 15 April 1971 and 22 October 1983.
Each member has provided a guarantee up to a limit of £1 each.
Directors and Trustees:
K. Bell
Dr L. Bojanowski
Dr A. Formaniak
P. Kaczmarski
J. Krupa (appointed 27 January 2018)
Dr O. R. Lalko
J. Mludzinska (Chair)
P. Pastuszek
R. W. Tobiasiewicz (resigned 19 May 2018)
R. Wisniowski
M. Wrona
A. M. Zakrzewski

Objectives and activities
The overall objectives of POSK can be summarised as follows:
•

to promote education and learning in the respective histories, arts, literatures, languages and
cultures of Poland and of the UK

•

to promote education, training and learning amongst Poles in the UK

•

to provide assistance and facilities for recreation and leisure, in particular to persons in need
by reason of youth, age, infirmity or disablement, poverty or social or economic circumstances

In pursuance of these aims, POSK has built and maintains a Centre where it promotes and fulfils
these aims, largely thanks to the generosity of its members both institutional and individual, but also
by raising income from the hire of some office and other space on its premises at commercial rates.

1
1
27

POLISH SOCIAL AND CULTURAL ASSOCIATION
Trustees’ Annual Report (Including Directors’ Report)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

The activities carried out on a regular basis are:
•

The provision of appropriate space and resources to allow the Polish Library to flourish. The
Polish Library collects, maintains and provides access to Polish books and other publications
as well as extensive archives of materials relating to Polish life and culture. It runs a lending
library and reading room as well as the Central Circulating Library service which provides
books in Polish for local public libraries.

•

The provision of appropriate space and resources for the regular activities of cultural,
educational and professional organisations having their home at the Centre such as (among
others) the Tatry Polish Song and Dance Group, Polish Stage Company in UK, the Polish
Children’s Theatre ‘Syrena’, the Confraternity of Polish Artists who organise classical music
concerts, as well as the Polish University Abroad (University of the Third Age), the Polish
Society of Arts & Sciences Abroad and the Association of Polish Engineers in the UK.

•

The provision of office space at significantly reduced rates to other Polish organisations and
charities, and also (again, at significantly reduced rates) the use of the theatre and other halls
for their cultural events, as well as educational and academic events such as lectures and
conferences.

•

POSK also runs its own Jazz Café, and a Gallery for exhibitions of the visual arts. It organises
productions of Polish opera with English surtitles.

All these activities are carried out with the aim of acting as a focal point within the Polish community
for promoting Polish Culture and language both within it as well as to the wider local community.
Achievements and performance
The cultural objectives of POSK continue to be realised through the provision of a wide-ranging
programme of drama, poetry, music, films and exhibitions of paintings and sculpture. 2018 was a year
largely given over to celebrating the centenary of Poland’s regaining independence, with special
exhibitions (in English and Polish), concerts, theatre productions and literary and discussion events.
POSK’s Cultural Committee presented its sixth production of opera by the celebrated Polish
composer Stanislaw Moniuszko, which has now become a popular annual event. These productions
bring together a team of conductor, director, designer, soloists, orchestra and choirs of both Polish
and non-Polish backgrounds, some resident in the UK and others in Poland. With the provision of
English surtitles, they help to promote Polish music and culture both within and outside the Polish
community.
Jazz Café POSK continues to be a very popular venue for many fans of various forms of jazz, swing
and blues from all over London and beyond, of all ages, backgrounds and cultures, who come to
POSK to see a variety of high class acts most weekends. The high point of the year is the now regular
participation in the annual London Jazz Festival as one of the festival’s prime venues, showcasing
Polish and other artists.
The POSK Gallery continues to host many different artists who relish the opportunity to show and sell
their works in one of relatively few spaces available in the heart of west London. The exhibitions bring
to the Centre many artists and visitors of culturally diverse backgrounds.
In 2018 POSK was also part of Open House London during which over 200 people visited the POSK
building and were given guided tours and given the opportunity to attend POSK events and
exhibitions.

POSK provides a venue for many literary evenings such as book launches and discussions,
organised mainly by the Polish Library, as well as celebrations in connection with anniversaries of
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historical events. The theatre and other halls as well as the restaurants and bars in the building drew
many guests for numerous social meetings and dances.
Many of POSK’s function rooms, halls and the theatre are hired out on a commercial basis by local
schools, choirs, drama, music and opera groups for rehearsals and performances, providing a benefit
to the local community as well as much needed revenue for POSK. They include The Arts
Educational Schools, W11 Opera, Addison Singers, City Academy and others.
During 2018, POSK welcomed over 43,000 visitors at over 300 events, of which over 100 were
specifically for Polish audiences. This number can easily be doubled if all those who have visited the
library, Polish passport point, art gallery, restaurants, café, and bars in the past year are included.
The Trustees consider that the main measures of POSK’s success are a continuing vibrant and
diverse programme of events and a reasonably high usage of the POSK building in terms of the
number of people visiting POSK and attending events.
The Welfare Committee, which has drawn together a group of younger members of the Polish
community who want to provide support for those with greater needs, has continued and developed
its work in 2018.
The planned goal of building residential property for rent on the empty site adjoining to and belonging
to the Centre at 3 Ravenscourt Avenue is now close to completion. Construction began in the autumn
of 2017 and was very close to completion by the end of 2018. It is expected that the four flats will be
ready to rent out in the spring of 2019.
Volunteers
Volunteers are key to POSK’s success. Numerous Trustees and members of the Council provide their
professional expertise in a voluntary capacity, specifically in terms of running POSK as well as
strategic planning, such as considering building works to improve POSK.
In addition to this, POSK has many volunteers who kindly give up their time and without whom POSK
would be unable to function. Specifically, POSK’s Gallery is run entirely by volunteers and numerous
volunteers assist in putting on POSK events such as exhibitions, lectures and the Opera.
It is difficult to estimate the number of hours put in by volunteers however it is clear to the Trustees
that without this significant input from Volunteers POSK would find it very difficult to carry out its
activities.
POSK would like to thank each and every one of its volunteers for their input.
Structure, Governance and Management
The key management personnel of POSK comprise the trustees only. Whilst some staff manage the
day to day affairs of POSK all strategic decisions are taken by the trustees who are directly involved
in its running.
POSK is governed by two main bodies – the Council of Management (“Council”) and the Executive
Committee.
The Council comprises 51 members of POSK who are elected at General Meetings of POSK. A Chair
is elected at POSK’s Annual General Meeting. At the first Council meeting after the Annual General
Meeting, an Executive Committee is proposed by the Chair, and confirmed by the Council.
Members of the Executive Committee who acted as the Trustees and Directors of POSK in 2018, are
listed earlier in this report.
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There are no formal policies and procedures for the training and induction of Trustees. Persons
elected as Trustees are usually familiar with POSK and/or charitable organisations in general, and are
therefore considered as not needing general induction.
The Trustees formulate Strategy and Policy, delegating the day to day running of POSK to its
employees. Certain Trustees who possess specialised skills or knowledge also act in an executive
capacity whenever necessary.
At each Annual General Meeting, under the Articles of Association, one third of the members of the
Council retire and, being eligible, may offer themselves for re-election. All members of the Executive
Committee of the Council, with the exception of the Secretary, retire from the Executive Committee
and, being eligible, may offer themselves for re-election to the Executive Committee at the first
meeting of the Council following the Annual General Meeting. New members appointed to the
Executive Committee are listed in this report.
The Council meets quarterly, but the Executive Committee, which includes chairs of specialist
committees, meets monthly to review and take decisions about POSK’s activities.
POSK is closely affiliated with the POSK Foundation, a charity that is registered under charity number
802083 and that has broadly the same charitable objectives as POSK In addition to this, one of the
POSK Foundation’s main charitable objects is to support the social, cultural and educational activities
undertaken or recommended by POSK.
Financial review
Income generation
Total income for POSK in 2018 was £974,135 (2017 - £1,413,654).
POSK’s income is very volatile due to donations and bequests. According to note 3, in 2018, total
income from donations and legacies was £104,314 (2017 – £498,149). This included £7,843 from
bequests (2017 – £6,833).
During the year POSK received £60,000 from the POSK Foundation (2017 - £460,000) and £214,693 in
investment income (2017 - £225,095). The Directors would like to thank the POSK Foundation for its
continuing support. The relatively high level of investment income shows the results of the Trustees’
policy of finding new revenue streams which do not impact materially on POSK’s charitable activities.
This policy of obtaining new revenue streams should lead to a stable financial situation in the future and
enable POSK to expand the breadth and depth of its charitable activities. The Trustees are continuing
this policy with the development of residential property at 3 Ravenscourt Avenue which is under
construction, due to be completed in early 2019 and will see its first full annual income generated in
2020.
POSK gives heartfelt thanks to all its supporters for their continued hard work and generosity in
achieving these results.
Resources expended
Resources expended on charitable activities and governance costs in 2018 were £1,005,669 (2017 £971,641). The Trustees are pleased that the costs of POSK remain relatively under control..
POSK continues to be affected by a high fixed cost base and the Trustees intend to carry on in seeking
methods that enable it to minimise its cost base.
A deficit of (£294,033) (2017 – surplus of £444,006) was recorded on the Statement of Financial
Activities for the year. The majority of the deficit in 2018 is represented by the unrealised loss on
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revaluation of POSK’s investment property (see note 15). Since it is not POSK’s intention to sell any of
its UK investment property this loss on revaluation has little effect on POSK’s long – term sustainability.
The Trustees consider the results for the year to be reasonable, and are hopeful that the continuing
policy of keeping costs stable whilst growing investment income will ensure the long-term success of
POSK.
Changes in fixed assets
The movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.
Reserves Policy and Going Concern
The reserves held by POSK are detailed in note 22 in the financial statements. The purpose of these
reserves is to allow it to continue to maintain and develop the POSK building, which is used to house its
activities.
POSK has a portfolio of investments that are used to generate income to fund its on-going charitable
activities. Additionally, it is the owner of a large building that requires constant expenditure on its fabric.
The Trustees are of the opinion that the net assets of POSK are wholly represented by such assets and
that this policy will apply until such a time as it is cash-flow neutral and can support itself from on-going
cash flows without recourse to one off inflows from asset sales or legacies and donations.
POSK’s reserves amount to £7,604,969 (2017 - £7,899,002) of which £nil is restricted (2017 – £nil).
Given the future cash flow projections of POSK and resources available to it the Trustees consider the
risk of its not being a going concern to be minimal.
Plans for future periods
The Trustees are continuing to implement strategies to put POSK on a sound financial footing so that
future generations may benefit from its facilities. Property bequeathed to POSK in Warsaw should be
sold in the coming year providing funds for investment in the fabric of POSK.
The development of residential property at 3 Ravenscourt Avenue will provide reliable regular income
to supplement POSK’s current income streams and allow it to become reasonably self-sufficient,
freeing up any income received from time to time in the form of donations or bequests for use on
furthering its social and cultural activities.
With the reduction of financial pressures, POSK will be able to concentrate more on its social and
cultural activities and is already attempting to broaden the scope of these activities in anticipation.
Theatrical productions on a large scale are currently beyond its means, but it hopes to be able to
respond to audience demand in this sphere in the future. It will also be better able to support other
groups and organisations with limited resources to organise events in the POSK building.

Investments
POSK’s investment policy is to invest in revenue generating assets in order to provide stable,
foreseeable cash flows to fund its ongoing activities. The primary aim of this policy is to generate a
return that is both a reasonable hedge against inflation and above the Bank of England base rate at
the time the investment decision is made. Investment decisions are made by the Trustees and
material investment decisions are ratified at meetings of the Council of Management.
During the year to 31 December 2018 POSK has continued to benefit from a high level of rental
income and the occupancy of its UK investment property remains at almost 100%. Whilst the capital
value of POSK’s Investment Property has decreased due to a general fall in London property values
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POSK has no intention on selling any UK Investment Property and this decrease will have no effect
on future rental streams.
Charity’s Public Benefit
The Trustees have paid due regard to the Charity Commission’s guidance and ensured that all activities
throughout the year have been in the interest of public benefit. This is evidenced by the continuing work
undertaken to keep the building open to the general public and to ensure that it continues to provide
educational and cultural experiences. It also contains and maintains Polish artefacts of historic
significance for public access.
Risk management
The Trustees have introduced a formal risk management process to assess business and operational
risks. As part of this process a system of internal controls was set up, designed to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss. These controls include:
•
•
•
•
•

An annual budget approved by the Council;
Regular reviews of the financial results and variances from budget;
Delegation of authority and segregation of duties;
Identification and management of risks;
An internal audit review.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing POSK are
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Uncertainties over the receipt of donations and bequests
An increase in property related expenses, which cannot be recovered from tenants.
An increase in costs that are outside of POSK’s control (such as Utilities costs, business rates,
Workplace Pensions and the Working Wage)
The loss of material tenants / hall hirers

POSK manages these risks by aiming to make a positive return on investment (such as the
development at 3 Ravenscourt Avenue) to help fund its activities and regularly reviewing its expenses to
ascertain whether they can be decreased. It also attempts to seek new sources of funding for its
activities and both new tenants and hall hirers to diversify its revenue streams.
Trustees’ Declaration
Each of the persons who are members of the Executive Committee at the time when this report is
approved has confirmed that:
(a)

So far as each member is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the charity’s
auditors are unaware; and

(b)

each member, in their capacity as a Trustee, has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken
as a Trustee, including making appropriate enquiries of his fellow Trustees and of the charity’s
auditors for that purpose, in order to make him aware of any information needed by the charity’s
auditors in connection with preparing their report and to establish that the charity’s auditors are
aware of that information.
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Auditors
A resolution to appoint H W Fisher and Company as the Charity’s auditor will be put to the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the board of Trustees

J Mludzinska (Chair)
Trustee

st

Date: 21 March 2019
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The trustees, (who are also the directors of Polish Social and Cultural Association for the purpose of company
law), are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the accounts in accordance with applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
Company Law requires the trustees to prepare accounts for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Charity and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the
income and expenditure, of the charitable company for that year.
In preparing these accounts, the trustees are required to:
- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the accounts; and
- prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Charity will
continue in operation.
The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Charity and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Charity and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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POLISH SOCIAL AND CULTURAL ASSOCIATION
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF POLISH SOCIAL AND CULTURAL ASSOCIATION
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Polish Social and Cultural Association (the ‘Charity’) for the year
ended 31 December 2018 which comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement
of cash flows and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
In our opinion, the financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Charity in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:
the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or
the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the Charity’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:
the information given in the Trustees' Report, which includes the directors’ report prepared for the
purposes of company law, for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and
the directors’ report included within the Trustees' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.
- 99 -
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Charity and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors’ report included within the Trustees' report.
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
the trustees were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies
regime and take advantage of the small companies’ exemptions in preparing the Trustees' report and from
the requirement to prepare a strategic report.
Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the statement of Trustees' responsibilities, the trustees, who are also the directors of
the Charity for the purpose of company law, are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the Charity’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.
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POLISH SOCIAL AND CULTURAL ASSOCIATION
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF POLISH SOCIAL AND CULTURAL ASSOCIATION
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the charitable company and the charitable company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.
Andrew Rich (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of H W Fisher & Company
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor
Acre House
11-15 William Road
London
NW1 3ER
United Kingdom
28 March 2019

11

37

- 11 -

POLISH SOCIAL AND CULTURAL ASSOCIATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Income from:
Donations and legacies
Charitable activities
Investments

Unrestricted
funds
2018
Notes
£
3
4
5

Total income

Restricted
funds
2018
£

Total Unrestricted
funds
2018
2017
£
£

Restricted
funds
2017
£

Total
2017
£

93,204
630,510
214,693

11,110
24,618
-

104,314
655,128
214,693

487,016
666,397
225,095

11,133
24,013
-

498,149
690,410
225,095

938,407

35,728

974,135

1,378,508

35,146

1,413,654

Expenditure on:
Raising funds

6

12,378

-

12,378

21,348

-

21,348

Charitable activities

7

846,724

158,945

1,005,669

824,428

147,213

971,641

859,102

158,945

1,018,047

845,776

147,213

992,989

79,305

(123,217)

(43,912)

532,732

(112,067)

420,665

(250,121)

23,341

(294,033)

556,073

(112,067)

(109,723)

109,723

Total resources
expended
Net (outgoing)/
incoming resources
before gains/(losses)
on investments
Net gains/(losses) on
investments

11

(250,121)

-

Net (outgoing)/
incoming resources
before transfers

(170,816)

(123,217)

Gross transfers
between funds

(123,217)

123,217

Net movement in funds

(294,033)

-

(294,033)

446,350

-

(2,344)

23,341

444,006
444,006

Fund balances at 1
January 2018

7,899,002

-

7,899,002

7,452,652

2,344

7,454,996

Fund balances at 31
December 2018

7,604,969

-

7,604,969

7,899,002

-

7,899,002

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.
All income and expenditure derive from continuing activities.
The statement of financial activities also complies with the requirements for an income and expenditure account
under the Companies Act 2006.
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
2018
Notes
Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Investment properties
Investments

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within
one year

£

13
15
16

17

19

£

2017
as restated
£

2,044,939
4,958,661
62,741

1,993,854
4,820,530
77,164

7,066,341

6,891,548

316,239
594,653

183,324
1,214,121

910,892

1,397,445

(372,264)

Net current assets

£

(389,991)
538,628

1,007,454

Total assets less current liabilities

7,604,969

7,899,002

Income funds
Unrestricted funds

7,604,969

7,899,002

7,604,969

7,899,002

The financial statements were approved by the Trustees on 21 March 2019

J Mludzinska (Chair)
Trustee
Company Registration No. 816310
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POLISH SOCIAL AND CULTURAL ASSOCIATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Notes
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash (absorbed by)/generated from
operations

£

2018

24

Investing activities
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Purchase of investment property
Proceeds on disposal of investment
property
Purchase of other investments
Investment income

£

£

2017

(337,959)

291,521

(122,373)
(385,457)

(130,605)
(130,908)

11,628
214,693

258,933
(3,000)
225,095

Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities

(281,509)

Financing activities
Repayment of borrowings

-

Net cash used in financing activities

(619,468)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

14
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219,515

(45,233)
-

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

£

(45,233)
465,803

1,214,121

748,318

594,653

1,214,121

POLISH SOCIAL AND CULTURAL ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
1

Accounting policies
Charity information
Polish Social and Cultural Association ("POSK" or "The Charity") is a company limited by guarantee
incorporated in England and Wales. The registered office is 238-246 King Street, London, W6 0RF.

1.1

Accounting convention
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and “Accounting and
Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their
accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
(FRS 102)” (as amended for accounting periods commencing from 1 January 2016). The Charity is a
Public Benefit Entity as defined by FRS 102.
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include
investment properties and listed investments at fair value. The principal accounting policies adopted are
set out below.

1.2

Going concern
At the time of approving the financial statements, the trustees have a reasonable expectation that the
Charity has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus the
trustees continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

1.3

Charitable funds
Unrestricted funds are available to spend on activities that further any of the purposes of the Charity.
Restricted funds are donations where the donor has specified are to be solely used for particular areas of
the Charity's work or for specific artistic projects being undertaken by the Charity.

1.4

Incoming resources
Cash donations are recognised on receipt. Other donations are recognised once the Charity has been
notified of the donation, unless performance conditions require deferral of the amount. Income tax
recoverable in relation to donations received under Gift Aid or deeds of covenant is recognised at the time
of the donation.
Legacies are recognised on receipt or otherwise if the Charity has been notified of an impending
distribution, the amount is known, and receipt is expected. If the amount is not known, the legacy is treated
as a contingent asset.
The value of services provided by volunteers has not been included in these accounts.
Investment income is included when receivable.
Incoming resources from charitable trading activities are accounted for when earned.
Interest on funds on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured reliably by the
Charity; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the bank.
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POLISH SOCIAL AND CULTURAL ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
1

Accounting policies

(Continued)

1.5

Resources expended
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to make a payment to a third
party, it is probable that settlement will be required and the amount of the obligation can be measured
reliably. Expenditure is classified under the following activity headings:
• Costs of raising funds comprise the costs of attracting voluntary income and the costs of
fundraising.
• Expenditure on charitable activities includes the costs of the delivery of its activities and services
for its beneficiaries.
• Other expenditure represents those items not falling into any other heading.
Irrecoverable VAT is charged as a cost against the activity for which the expenditure was incurred.
All support costs are allocated to the one charitable activity of Polish social and cultural activities.

1.6

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost, net of depreciation
and any impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives on the following bases:
Freehold buildings
Fixtures, fittings & equipment

1% per annum on cost
10-25% per annum on written down values

Freehold land is not depreciated.
Freehold buildings are subject to an annual impairment review and any impairment is taken to the
statement of financial activities.
1.7

Investment property
Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is initially
recognised at cost, which includes the purchase cost and any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequently it is measured at fair value at the reporting end date. The surplus or deficit on revaluation is
recognised in profit or loss.
The trustees take advice from relevant professionals (chartered surveyors and estate agents) when
determining the value of the investment properties. Any unrealised gains or losses are shown on the face
of the Statement of Financial Activities.

1.8

Heritage assets
Heritage assets are only capitalised if they have been purchased or if a market value is available at the
time of receipt.

1.9

Fixed asset investments
Investments in shares are initially measured at transaction price excluding transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.
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POLISH SOCIAL AND CULTURAL ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
1

Accounting policies

(Continued)

1.10 Impairment of fixed assets
At each reporting end date, the Charity reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).
1.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities.
1.12 Financial instruments
The Charity only has financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial
instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at transaction value and subsequently
measured at their settlement value.
1.13 Employee benefits
The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services
are received.
Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the Charity is demonstrably
committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.
1.14 Retirement benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.
1.15 Foreign exchange
Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains
and losses arising on translation are included in net income/(expenditure) for the period.
1.16 Consolidation
The results of the Polish Trustee Association Limited have not been consolidated on the basis of
materiality.
2

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
In the application of the Charity’s accounting policies, the trustees are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future
periods.
The main source of judgement used in the preparation of the financial statements relates to the valuation of
Investment Property. Details of the estimates used can be found in note 15 of the financial statements.
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3

Donations and legacies
Unrestricted
funds
general
2018
£

Restricted
funds

93,204

11,110

104,314

6,443

-

60,000

Donations and gifts

Donations and gifts
Bequests to POSK
Donation from POSK
Foundation
Other donations and
membership
subscriptions
Bequests to Library
Other donations

4

Total Unrestricted
funds
general
2018
2017
£
£

Restricted
funds

Total

2017
£

2017
£

487,016

11,133

498,149

6,443

5,833

-

5,833

-

60,000

460,000

-

460,000

26,761
-

4,384
1,400
5,326

31,145
1,400
5,326

21,183
-

5,587
1,000
4,546

26,770
1,000
4,546

93,204

11,110

104,314

487,016

11,133

498,149

2018
£

Charitable activities
Facilities,
Facilities,
Arts Centre, Arts Centre,
Theatre and Theatre and
Jazz Cafe
Jazz Cafe
2018
2017
£
£
Charitable rental income
Facilities, Arts Centre, Theatre and Jazz Café

Analysis by fund
Unrestricted funds - general
Restricted funds

18
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383,531
271,597

377,749
312,661

655,128

690,410

630,510
24,618

666,397
24,013

655,128

690,410

POLISH SOCIAL AND CULTURAL ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
5

Investments
Unrestricted Unrestricted
funds
funds
general
general
2018
2017
£
£
Rental income
Income from shares and other investments

6

204,224
10,469

216,749
8,346

214,693

225,095

Raising funds
Unrestricted Unrestricted
funds
funds
general
general
2018
2017
£
£
Investment management costs

19
- 45
19 -

12,378

21,348

12,378

21,348

POLISH SOCIAL AND CULTURAL ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
7

Charitable activities
Polish Polish social
social and and cultural
cultural
activities
activities
2018
2017
£
£
Staff costs
Depreciation and impairment
Legal and professional fees
Printing, postage and stationery
Costs of Jazz Cafe events
Other expenses
Bad debts written off / (back)
Foreign exchange currency movements
Speakers and performers' fees and expenses
Grants payable

Share of support costs (see note 8)
Share of governance costs (see note 8)

Analysis by fund
Unrestricted funds - general
Restricted funds

20
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353,527
71,288
9,781
5,402
25,154
344,464
11,379
646
55,059
11,442

335,520
67,187
10,010
7,594
29,025
335,247
15,596
(9,697)
56,247
11,889

888,142

858,618

104,909
12,618

97,772
15,251

1,005,669

971,641

846,724
158,945

824,428
147,213

1,005,669

971,641

POLISH SOCIAL AND CULTURAL ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
8

Support costs

Staff costs
Printing, postage and
stationery
Other support costs
Irrecoverable VAT
Audit fees
Accountancy

Analysed between
Charitable activities

Support Governance
costs
costs
£
£

2018
£

Support Governance
costs
costs
£
£

2017
£

55,474

-

55,474

54,260

-

54,260

21,248
24,800
3,387

-

21,248
24,800
3,387

12,217
27,712
3,583

-

12,217
27,712
3,583

-

8,500
4,118

8,500
4,118

-

8,500
6,751

8,500
6,751

104,909

12,618

117,527

97,772

15,251

113,023

104,909

12,618

117,527

97,772

15,251

113,023

Governance costs includes payment to the auditors of £8,500 (2017: £8,500) for audit fees and £1,113
(2017: £3,098) for other services.
9

Trustees
None of the trustees (or any persons connected with them) received any remuneration or benefits from the
Charity during the year. Two trustees were reimbursed expenses in connection with visiting the Frascati
property in Poland, performing duties on behalf of the Charity. These amounted to £1,064 in the year
(2017: £682) for accommodation and travel. During the year, the Charity paid a sum of £1,200 (2017:
£1,200) in respect of trustee indemnity insurance on behalf of the trustees.
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10

Employees
Number of employees
The average monthly head count was 24 staff (2017: 26) and the average monthly number of full time
equivalent employees (including casual and part time staff) during the year were as follows:
2018
Number

2017
Number

10
7

10
7

17

17

Employment costs

2018
£

2017
£

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

377,510
27,991
3,500

358,522
27,267
3,991

409,001

389,780

House
Library

The key management personnel of the Charity comprise the trustees only. Whilst some staff manage the
day to day affairs of the Charity all strategic decisions are taken by the trustees who are directly involved
in the running of the Charity.
There were no employees whose annual remuneration was £60,000 or more.

11

Net gains/(losses) on investments
Unrestricted Unrestricted
funds
funds
general
general
2018
2017
£
£
Revaluation of investments
Revaluation of investment properties (see note 15)
Gain/(loss) on sale of investment properties

22
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(14,423)
(227,326)
(8,372)

(5,592)
28,933

(250,121)

23,341

POLISH SOCIAL AND CULTURAL ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
12

Taxation
As a Charity, the Polish Social and Cultural Association Limited is exempt from UK tax on income and gains
to the extent that these are applied to its charitable objects. No UK tax charges have arisen in the Charity,
during the year or the previous year.
Polish tax authorities had refused to recognise POSK as a Charity and POSK has been required to pay tax
on the rental income on the investment property at Frascati 4. POSK has received a favourable tax ruling
and may no longer subject to paying Polish tax however in the light of the UK's exit from the European
Union the matter continues to be inherently uncertain. A provision of £177,046 has been set against the
value of the property.

13

Tangible fixed assets
Freehold
buildings

£

Fixtures,
fittings &
equipment

Total

£

£

Cost
At 1 January 2018
Additions

2,535,208
28,537

926,406
93,836

3,461,614
122,373

At 31 December 2018

2,563,745

1,020,242

3,583,987

Depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2018
Depreciation charged in the year

860,683
25,637

607,077
45,651

1,467,760
71,288

At 31 December 2018

886,320

652,728

1,539,048

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2018

1,677,425

367,514

2,044,939

At 31 December 2017

1,674,525

319,329

1,993,854

The Polish Centre at 238-246 King Street, Hammersmith, London, W6 0RF, is included in the accounts at
cost however the market value would be substantially higher. The value for insurance purposes was
approximately £14m. All assets are used for charitable purposes.
14

Heritage assets
The Charity has been bequeathed, over a number of years, artefacts of cultural and historical significance.
These include furniture, paintings, books and sculptures. Due to the unique and specific nature of the
artefacts and the context in which they were bequeathed there is no readily ascertainable market value
and it has not been sought to attribute one within the financial statements. These assets are therefore
included at £nil and it is not practical to provide a five-year summary for the reporting periods prior to 1
January 2018.
There were no sales or purchases of heritage assets during the year.
The ownership of the contents of the Central Circulating Library and Polish Library was vested in the
Charity by the British Government with effect from 1 April 1967 and 1 August 1967 respectively. The value
of these has not been ascertained and has not been brought into the accounts at 31 December 2018.
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Investment property

2018
as restated
£

Fair value
At 1 January 2018
(see note 25)
Additions
Disposals
Net gains or losses through fair value adjustments

4,820,530
385,457
(20,000)
(227,326)

At 31 December 2018

4,958,661

Movement on investment property - 2018
Market value
at 1 January
2018

Additions /
(disposals)

9 Ravenscourt Avenue
Property in Poland (Frascati 4) - see note
below
238 A and B King Street
Flat 3 Oakhurst Court, Cheltenham
3 Ravenscourt Avenue

1,525,000
744,622
2,400,000
20,000
130,908

(20,000)
315,753

Total

4,820,530

365,457

Market value
at 1 January
2017

Additions /
(disposals)

1,525,000

-

69,704

Change in Market value
value in the
at 31
year
December
2018

(25,000)

1,500,000

97,674
(300,000)

912,000
2,100,000
446,661

(227,326)

4,958,661

Movement on investment property - 2017

9 Ravenscourt Avenue
Property in Poland (Frascati 4) - see note
below
238 A and B King Street
Flat 3 Oakhurst Court, Cheltenham
3 Ravenscourt Avenue
Total

Change in Market value
value in the
at 31
year
December
2017

-

1,525,000

744,622
2,400,000
250,000

(268,000)
130,908

38,000
-

744,622
2,400,000
20,000
130,908

4,919,622

(137,092)

38,000

4,820,530
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Investment property

(Continued)

POSK's UK investment properties are valued by the Trustees by comparing the rental yield obtained on
these properties to local market yields on similar properties and extrapolating this yield to obtain an
estimate of fair value. Furthermore this estimate of fair value is compared to information received from
local estate agents in order to ensure that the fair value as calculated is reasonable and adjusting it if
necessary.
The Trustees have based the fair value of POSK's investment property in Poland as POSK's share of the
estimated proceeds on sale after deducting (1) all estimated costs of sale, obtaining vacant possession
and tax and (2) the remuneration of its lawyers in Poland who have dealt with its recovery from the
Warsaw authorities, management and subsequent sale amounting to £538,000 (2017 - £355,578).
The historic cost of investment properties of £1,898,842 (2017: £1,583,089) comprises 9 Ravenscourt
Avenue at £225,392 (2017: £225,392), 3 Ravenscourt Avenue at £446,661 (2017: £130,908), property
held in Poland (Frascati 4) at £720,000 (2017: £720,000) and 238 A/B King Street at £506,789 (2017:
£506,789).
The Charity's Investment Property investment portfolio is the key to its long-term financial viability. The
Trustees have adopted a policy of investing the Charity's funds into investments that will create additional
recurring annual income to support the activities of the Charity. Such investments consist of investment
properties and UK equities.
The main risk to the Charity of these investments lies in the uncertainty of the performance of property
rental markets.
Prior year adjustment
As further explained at note 15, the accounts now show the value of Frascati 4 at the net amount
recoverable by the Charity. As at 1 January 2017, the market value of Frascati 4 before the prior year
adjustment was £1,100,000. the opening balance was revalued by the sum of £355,378 representing legal
fees payable. The revalued market value at 1 January 2017 is £744,822.

16

Fixed asset investments

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2018
Valuation changes

Listed
investments
£

Share of
Other
freehold investments
£

Total
£

70,999
(14,423)

3,000
-

3,165
-

77,164
(14,423)

At 31 December 2018

56,576

3,000

3,165

62,741

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2018

56,576

3,000

3,165

62,741

At 31 December 2017

70,999

3,000

3,165

77,164
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Fixed asset investments

(Continued)

Other investments comprises of a wholly owned subsidiary, The Polish Trustee Association Limited, which
is registered in the United Kingdom. The company made a profit of £3,593 in the year to 31 March 2018
and had capital reserves of £12,266 at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: £8,673).
In 2017 the charity purchased a 1/8 share of the company that owns the freehold of Oakhurst Court,
Parabola Road, Cheltenham for £3,000.

Notes

Other investments comprise:
Investments in subsidiaries

17

Debtors
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

18

Financial instruments
Carrying amount of financial assets
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost
Equity instruments at fair value
Carrying amount of financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost (see note 19)

2018
£

2017
£

3,165

3,165

2018
£

2017
£

151,576
140,376
24,287

138,564
24,135
20,625

316,239

183,324

2018
£

2017
£

292,092
59,576

183,324
70,999

(372,264)

(389,991)

Debt instruments are made up of trade debtors (£151,576) and other debtors (£140,376). Equity
instruments are made up of both listed (£56,576) and other investments (£3,000).
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Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Notes
Other taxation and social security
Deferred income
Trade creditors
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income

20

20

2018
£

2017
£

140
124,310
62,496
139,837
45,481

15,926
118,753
79,033
135,310
40,969

372,264

389,991

2018
£

2017
£

124,310

118,753

Deferred income

Other deferred income

All of the deferred income relates to rental income paid in advance. Of the £118,753 brought forward from
2017, the whole of this amount was released during the year. An amount of £124,310 is to be carried
forward as of 31 December 2018.
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21

2,344

35,146

£

£
(147,213)

£

Resources
expended

109,723

£

Transfers

-

£

Balance at
1 January 2018

35,728

£

(158,945)

£

Resources
expended

Movement in funds

Incoming
resources

123,217

£

Transfers

£

-

Balance at
31 December
2018

- 28 -

The library fund represents donations and bequests to cover the costs of the Polish Library. In order to cover the deficit on the fund a transfer from unrestricted
funds was undertaken.

Library

Incoming
resources

Balance at
1 January 2017

Movement in funds

The income funds of the charity include restricted funds comprising the following unexpended balances of donations and grants held on trust for specific purposes:

Restricted funds
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Analysis of net assets between funds
Unrestricted Restricted
funds
funds
2018
2018
£
£
Fund balances at
31 December
2018 are
represented by:
Tangible assets
2,044,939
Investment properties
4,958,661
Investments
62,741
Current assets/
(liabilities)
538,628
7,604,969

23

-

Total Unrestricted
funds
2018
2017
£
£

Restricted
funds
2017
£

Total
2017
£

2,044,939
4,958,661
62,741

1,993,854
4,820,530
77,164

-

1,993,854
4,820,530
77,164

538,628

1,007,454

-

1,007,454

7,604,969

7,899,002

-

7,899,002

Related party transactions
Transactions with related parties
The POSK Foundation was formed in 1989 to support the charitable objectives of Polish Social and
Cultural Association Limited ("POSK") and is a related party to the charity.
During the year, POSK received a donation of £60,000 (2017: £460,000) from the POSK Foundation.
The administrative costs of the POSK Foundation are borne by POSK.
Mr A. M. Zakrzewski and Mr R. Wisniowski are Trustees of both POSK and the POSK Foundation.
Mr R. W. Tobiasiewicz was a Director/Trustee of Polish Cultural Foundation Ltd which is one of POSK's
tenants. During the year a total of £18,766 (2017: £17,441) was charged to Polish Cultural Foundation Ltd
for rent and service charges.
Mr R. Wisniowski is also a director of Polish Daily Publishers Limited, a company that publishes "Tydzien
Polski", a weekly newspaper that POSK advertises in. During the year a total of £5,605 (2017: £5,200) was
paid by POSK to Polish Daily Publishers Limited.
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25

Cash generated from operations

2018
£

2017
£

(Deficit)/surpus for the year

(294,033)

444,006

Adjustments for:
Investment income recognised in statement of financial activities
Loss/(gain) on disposal of investment property
Fair value gains and losses on investment properties
Fair value gains and losses on investments
Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed assets

(214,693)
8,372
227,326
14,423
71,288

(225,095)
(28,933)
5,592
67,187

Movements in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in debtors
(Decrease)/increase in creditors
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income

(132,915)
(23,284)
5,557

14,127
40,601
(25,964)

Cash (absorbed by)/generated from operations

(337,959)

291,521

Prior period adjustment
Changes to the balance sheet
Balances as restated before FRS 102 transition
adjustments:
Fixed assets
Investment properties
Creditors due after one year
Other creditors

At 31 December 2017

As previously
reported

Adjustment

As restated

£

£

£

5,175,908
(355,378)

(355,378)

4,820,530

355,378

-

Net assets

7,899,002

-

7,899,002

Unrestricted funds

7,899,002

-

7,899,002

Income funds

7,899,002

-

7,899,002

The Trustees have agreed it is no longer appropriate for POSK's Polish investment property (Frascati 4) to
be valued at fair value as an asset and for the remuneration due to POSK's Polish lawyers for its recovery
and subsequent preparation for sale to be treated as a liability. The basis of this change in accounting
treatment is that it is misleading to show a large liability due within one year that will only crystallise on
disposal of part or all of the asset - both the asset and the liability are inextricably linked. Consequently the
liability in respect of the remuneration of POSK's Polish lawyers as at 31 December 2017 of £355,378 has
been netted off against the fair value of the Polish investment property, which has led to the above prior
year adjustment
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Polish Social and Cultural Association
(Company Limited by Guarantee)
Schedules Supporting Financial Statements - 31 December 2018
Where a detailed breakdown of Income and Expenditure (for example grants, donations and legacies) is
available in the accounts no further explanation has been given. In other cases a more detailed
breakdown of both Income and expenditure is given below
Please note that that the schedules on the following two pages do not form part of the audited
accounts and have been prepared by management for information only
2018
£

2017
£

104,314
214,693
655,128

498,149
225,095
690,410

974,135

1,413,654

12,378

21,348

(12,378)

(21,348)

409,002
71,288
12,080
12,618
500,681

389,781
67,187
13,073
15,251
486,349

(1,005,669)

(971,641)

Net Incoming/(outgoing resources)

(43,912)

420,665

Gains/(Losses) on investment assets (see split on next page)

(250,121)

23,341

Net realised and unrealised income for the year

(294,033)

444,006

2018
£

2017
£

8,029
265,244
115,996
12,793
12,206
13,041
67,527
42,004
118,288

10,609
248,056
122,948
14,776
13,404
5,478
74,701
72,509
127,929

655,128

690,410

Incoming Resources
Donations and Legacies (see note 3 of the accounts)
Investment Income (see note 5 of the accounts)
Operation of Theatre and Arts Centre (see split below)

Costs of Generating Funds
Costs of generating donations and legacies
Property Investment Management Costs
Total Costs of Generating Funds
Charitable Activities and Governance Costs
Staff Costs
Depreciation
Grants given
Audit and accounting fees
Activities Undertaken Directly (see split on next page)
Charitable Activities and Governance Costs

Income from Theatre and Arts Centre
Subscriptions (including Central Circulating Library)
Rent received
Hire of rooms
Parking
Sundry Library Sales
Sundry Income
Income from Jazz Café
Theatre Hire
Service charges receivable

This page does not form part of the audited accounts.
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Polish Social and Cultural Association
(Company Limited by Guarantee)
Schedules Supporting Financial Statements - 31 December 2018 (continued)

Costs of Activities undertaken directly:
Accommodation Expenses
Business and Water Rates (including Investment Properties)
Lighting and Heating
Insurance
Telephone
Repairs and Maintenance (including Investment Properties)
Cleaning
Security

Other Costs
Jazz Café expenses (including performers' fees & expenses)
New books and binding
Conference & Speakers' and Performers' fees & expenses
Sundry expenses
Computer expenses
Non-Recoverable Input VAT / recovered from previous periods
Printing, Postage, Stationery, Advertising & Publicity
Bank charges, foreign exchange losses and interest
Bad debt provision movements
Legal and Professional Fees
Frascati 4 repairs and renewals

Total Costs of Activities undertaken directly
Gains and Losses on Assets
(Losses) / Gains on Equity Investments
(Loss) on revaluation of 9 Ravenscourt Avenue
(Loss) on revaluation of 238A King Street
Gain on revaluation of Property in Warsaw (Frascati 4)
(Loss) / Gain on disposal of Cheltenham Property
Loss on revaluation of Polish Property (Frascati 4)
Total (Loss) / Gain on Assets

2018
£

2017
£

34,206
56,845
31,691
8,931
85,212
76,355
19,777

46,190
68,359
30,812
8,300
63,544
74,083
19,866

313,017

311,154

£

£

51,853
2,938
28,359
14,839
3,260
3,387
41,853
1,627
11,379
12,455
15,713

60,515
3,789
24,757
14,992
5,731
3,583
25,263
(7,677)
15,677
12,185
16,378

187,664

175,195

500,681

486,349

2018
£

2017
£

(14,423)
(300,000)
(25,000)
97,674
(8,372)

(5,592)
28,933

(250,121)

23,341

This page does not form part of the audited accounts.
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